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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
TAMPA DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

V.
Case No. 8:13-cv-1329-T-33TBM

RESORT SOLUTION TRUST, INC.

a Florida corporation,

LINCOLN RENWICK II, individually and as
owner, officer, or manager of Resort
Solution Trust, and

ANTHONY TALAVERA, individually and as
owner, officer, or manager of Resort
Solution Trust,

Defendants.
/

DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND FINAL ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission (“FTC"*@ommission”) commenced this action on
May 20, 2013, by filing a complaint for a perneau injunction and other equitable relief
pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of theldfal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15
U.S.C. 88 53(b) and 57b, and the Telemarketind Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention
Act (“Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. 88 6101-6108. The complaint alleges that Defendants
Resort Solution Trust, Inc., Lincoln Renwick Il, and Anthony Talavera violated Section 5(a)
of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a) and the Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part
310, in connection with the markegimnd sale of timeshare resakrvices though interstate

telephone calls to consumersabghout the United States.
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Defendant Resort Solution Trust, Inc., (‘"Rpwas properly served with the complaint
and summons (Doc. No. 36), but failed to ple& otherwise defen@Doc. No. 37). On
November 12, 2013, the Clerk entered defaultregjddefendant (Doc. No. 38). Plaintiff has
moved the Court to enter a default judgmentfamal order, pursuant téederal Rule of Civil
Procedure 55(b)(2), on all counts of then@daint against the Defendant RST. Having
considered the legal authority cited, the msimade in the Complaint, Defendant RST’s
failure to plead or otherwise defend afterinigeproperly served, @hPlaintiff's instant
application and memorandum ofyld authority, the Court herelfyRANTS the Plaintiff's
motion for a default judgment and final order against Defendant RST.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERE D, ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows:

FINDINGS

1. This is an action instited under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15
U.S.C. 88 53(b) and 57b; tAelemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 6101-6108; and the TSR, 16
C.F.R. Part 310. Pursuant to #tatutes and regulations, Plaffitias the authority to seek the
relief it has requested.

2. The complaint states a claim upon igé relief may be granted against
Defendant RST under Sectiongh(13(b), and 19 of the FTA:t, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 45(a), 53(b),
and 57b; the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C.6891-6108; and the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310.

3. This Court has subject matter juiisiibn pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1331,
1337(a), and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a) aifd)%8hd jurisdiction over Defendant RST.

4, Venue is proper in this district under @85.C. 8 1391(b) and (c), and 15 U.S.C.

§ 53(b).



5. The activities alleged in the complaineasr were “in or affecting commerce”
as “commerce” is defined in Sectidrof the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

6. Defendant RST was properly served wpttocess, as required by Fed. R. Civ.
P. 4, and failed to plead or otherwise defenithiw the time set forth in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(a).

7. An Entry of Default was properly emgsl by the Clerk against Defendant RST
on November 12, 2013.

8. The factual allegations of the Complaint are taken as true because a default has
been entered against Defendant RST. Tladegations establish d#h Defendant RST has
engaged in a plan, program, or campaign to plecdy advertise, market, promote, offer for
sale, or sell timeshare resagervices through interstateelephone calls to consumers
throughout the United States in violationS¥ction 5 of the FTC Act and the TSR.

9. In connection with thedvertising, marketing, promotion, offering for sale, or
sale of their timeshare resale services, Defesdaante violated Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,
15 U.S.C. § 45(a) and the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 8§ 3a)(3], by falsely remsenting, directly or
indirectly, expressly or by implication, th&@tefendants have a buyer for the consumer’s
timeshare property who will pay a specifiedcpri or that Defendants will quickly sell the
consumer’s timeshare.

10. In connection with telemarketing, Defemds have initiated, or caused others
to initiate, an outbound telephone call to a peistelephone numben the National Do Not
Call Registry in violation of th@ SR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B).

11. In connection with telemarketing, Defendants have initiated, or caused others

to initiate, an outbound telephonall to a telephone number wittha given area code when



Defendants had not, either directly or through another person, paid the required annual fee for
access to the telephone numbers within that@rda that are included the National Do Not
Call Registry in violation of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.8.

12. Defendant are likely to continue ithe acts and practices alleged in the
Complaint unless they are permanentljogred form such acts and practices

13. Thus, it is proper in this case to enter equitable monetary relief against
Defendant RST for its violations of the FTC Act and the TSR.

14.  For the period from January 1, 2009, through May 20, 2013, Defendant’s
revenues from the conduct alleged in the complaint was $6,488,856.

15.  Plaintiff is therefore entitled to edable monetary relieagainst Defendant
RST in the amount of $6,488,856.

16.  This Final Order is in addition to, and notlieu of, any other civil or criminal
remedies that may be provided by law.

17.  Entry of this Final Order is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

1. “Individual Defendants” means Lincoln Renwick Il and Anthony Talavera
and by whatever other names they may be known.

2. “Corporate Defendant” or “Receivership Defendant” means Resort
Solution Trust, Inc., and its scessors and assigns, as wadl any subsidiaries, and any
fictitious business entitiesr business names creat@dused by this entity.

3. “Defendants” means the Individual Defendardand the Corporate Defendant,

individually, collectively,or in any combination.



4, “Person” means a natural person, business#ire, organization or other legal
entity, including a corporation, partnership, sole proprittiqy; limited liaklity company,
association, cooperativeust, subsidiary, division omg other group or combination acting
as an entity.

5. “Telemarketing” means any plan, program, @mpaign which is conducted
to induce the purchase of goods or servicesabraaitable contribution by use of one or more
telephones, whether or not covel®dthe Telemarketing Sales Rule.

6. “Timeshare” means any right of ownership or occupancy in any vacation
property or properties (includg, but not limited to, condominiums, resorts, campgrounds, and
cruise ships) that providegyhts-holders with periodic usage or occupancy rights. The term
also includes “point-based” pragns that provide similar ownership or occupancy benefits.

7. “Timeshare Resale Service’means any good, service, plan or program
represented, expressly or by implication, tsigtsan individual in advertising, marketing,
promoting, offering for sale, or lieg an individual’s Timeshare.

FINAL ORDER

PERMANENT BAN ON TELEMARKETING

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED #t Corporate Defendant, wther acting directly or
indirectly, is hereby permanently restrained anpbined from engaging in, participating in, or
assisting others in Telemarketing.

I PERMANENT BAN ON TIMESHARE RESALE SERVICES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporafefendant, whether acting directly or

indirectly, is hereby permantiy restrained andenjoined from advertising, marketing,



promoting, offering for sale, oselling, or assisting others advertising, marketing,
promoting, offering for sale, or seily, any Timeshare Resale Service.

II. PROHIBITED PRACTICES RELATING TO ANY GOODS OR SERVICES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporate feadant, its officers, agents, servants,
employees, and attorneys, andadhler Persons in active concertparticipation with it who
receive actual notice of thisinal Order by personal servicg otherwise, whether acting
directly or indirecty, in connection with tl advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for
sale, or sale of any good or service, are Ihemermanently restrained and enjoined from
misrepresenting, or assisting athén misrepresenting, directty indirectly, expressly or by
implication, any material factncluding, but not limited to:

A. the total cost to purcéa, receive, or usbe good or service;

B. any material restriction, limitatioay condition to purchase, receive, or use
the good or service;

C. any material aspect of the rrator terms of a refund, cancellation, exchange,
or repurchase policy fahe good or service; and

D. any material aspect of therformance, efficacy, nature, or central
characteristic of the good or service.

V. PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLAT ING THE TELEMARKETING SALES
RULE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corpate Defendant, its officers, agents,
servants, employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with
any of them who receive actuadtice of this Final Order bgersonal servicer otherwise,

whether acting directly or indicdly, in connection with the adwgsing, marketing, promotion,



offering for sale, or sale ohg good or service, are hereby pamantly restrained and enjoined
from violating or assisting otig in violating any provision ahe Telemarketing Sales Rule
(“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, including, but not limited to:

A.  Section 310.3(a)(4) of the TSR, C&-.R. 8310.3(a)(4), by making false or
misleading statements to induce aamers to pay for goods or services;

B.  Section 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B) of TSR, 16 C.F.R. 8310.4(b)(1)(iii))(B), by
initiating, or causing others to initiate, aatbound telephone call to a person’s telephone
number on the National Dot Call Registry; and

C. Section 310.8 of the TSR, 16 C.F8310.8, by initiating, or causing others to
initiate, an outbound telephone c#dl a telephone number witha given area code when
Defendants had not, either directly or through another person, paid the required annual fee for
access to the telephone numbers within that@rda that are included the National Do Not
Call Registry.

V. PROHIBITION ON COLLECTING ON ACCOUNTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporate feadant, its officers, agents, servants,
employees, and attorneys, andaher persons in active concertparticipation with any of
them who receive actual notice of this Finabl@rby personal serviae otherwise, whether
acting directly or indirectly, are hereby perraatly restrained and enjoined from attempting
to collect, collecting, or aggiing any right to collect payamt from any consumer who
purchased or agreed to purchase any op@mate Defendant’s goods services, where the
purported authorization fahe alleged sale occurred priortte entry of this Final Order.

VI. MONETARY JUDGMENT AND CONSUMER REDRESS




IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. Judgment in the amount of $6,488,856 is exdten favor of the Federal Trade
Commission and against Defendant Resort Solution Trust, Inequatable monetary relief.
This monetary judgment shall become immesliatiue and payable by Corporate Defendant
upon entry of this Final Order.

B. All monies paid to the Commission pursuant to this Final Order shall be
deposited into a fund administered by the Cossion or its designee e used for equitable
relief, including consumer redress and anyratéat expenses for the administration of any
redress fund. If a representative of the Comsiars decides that direct redress to consumers
is wholly or partially impracticable or money remains after the redress is completed, the
Commission may, in its discretioapply any remaining money feuch other edtable relief
(including consumer information remedies) iasdetermines to be reasonably related to
Defendant’s practices alleged in the Complaihy money not used for such equitable relief
is to be deposited to the U Beasury as disgorgement.

C. No portion of any payment under thedgment herein shall be deemed a
payment of any fine, pehig or punitive assessment.

Vil.  CUSTOMER INFORMATION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporate feadant, its officers, agents, servants,
employees, and attorneys, andaher persons in active concertparticipation with any of
them who receive actual notice of this Finabl@rby personal serviae otherwise, whether
acting directly or indirectly, are herepgrmanently restrained and enjoined from:

A. Failing to provide sufficient customerformation to enable the Commission



to efficiently administer consumer redregsa representative dhe Commission requests in
writing any information related to redress, Ganggte Defendant must provide it, in the form
prescribed by the Commission, within 14 days.

B. Disclosing, using, or benefitting from stomer information including, but not
limited to, the name, address, telephone nundeajl address, social security number, other
identifying information, or any data that etetaccess to a customeascount (including a
credit card, bank account, orhet financial account), thanhg Defendant obtained prior to
entry of this Final Order in connection wigldvertising, marketing, promotion, offering for
sale or sale of any timieare resale service; and

C. Failing to destroy such customer infation in all forms in their possession,
custody, or control withirthirty (30) days aftereceipt of written direction to do so from a
representative of the Comssion. Destroying shall be by means that protect against
unauthorized access to the customer informasioch as by burning, pulverizing, or shredding
any papers, and by erasing ostleying any electronic medi& ensure that the customer
information cannot practicably be read or reconstructed.

Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, and may be
disclosed, to the extent requested by a governaggricy or required by a law, regulation, or
court order.

VIll. TURNOVER OF ASSETS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in order partially satisfy the monetary judgment
set forth in Section VI above, any law firmndincial or brokerage institution, escrow agent,

title company, commodity trading companyt@uated clearing houspayment processor,



person, or entity served with a copy of thisdti Order, that holds, controls or maintains
custody of any account or asset of, on behalboffor the benefit of Corporate Defendant,
shall turn over all such funds or assets tdRbeeiver within ten (1Qusiness days of receiving
notice of this Final Order by any means, inchgldbut not limited to via email or facsimile.

IX. LIFTING OF ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze @brporate Defendant’s assets shall be
lifted for the sole purpose of transferring funds and assets pursuant to Sections VI and VIlIi
above and shall be dissolved oniyon transfer of all such fundsved to Plaintiff. A third
party shall be entitled to rely uparetter from Plaintiff stating #t the freeze on the assets of
Corporate Defendant has been lifted.

X. RECEIVERSHIP

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A. Except as modified by this Section, teeeivership imposed by this Court shall
continue as set forth in the Order of Ifngnary Injunction entered on June 11, 2013. Doc.
No. 21.

B. The Receiver shall take all stepscessary to immediately wind down the
affairs and liquidate the assets of ReceiverBfendant, from wherever and in whatever form
they may be located.

C. The Receiver shall contintie be entitled to compensation for the performance
of his duties pursuant to this Final Order frtime assets of Receivership Defendant, at the

billing rate previously agreed oy the Receiver. Within thirty (30) days after entry of this
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Final Order, and every thirty Q3 days thereafter until completed, the Receiver shall file with
the Court an accounting and request forgagment of such reasonable compensation.

D. Upon the liquidation of any asset hdlg or surrendered tthe Receiver, the
Receiver shall, at the FTC’s request, immedidtalgsfer all funds to the FTC or its designated
representative in partiahtisfaction of the judgment pursuansiection VI of this Final Order.
The Receiver is authorized to withhold a reabtsaum, not to exceed ten (10)% of the then-
current liquid assets for costs, fees and expenses.

E. Upon approval of the Receiver’s final report and request for payment, but no
later than 90 days after entry of this Final Qrdthe receivership shall be terminated, and all
funds remaining after payment of the Reces/éinal approved payment shall be remitted
immediately to the FTC or itdesignated representative.

F. Within five (5) days of termination of the receivership, the Receiver shall return
all records of Receivership Defendant in hisgEssion relating to their financial affairs to
Individual Defendants so that they may prearé file all necessamgorporate ad individual
tax returns. The Receiver is also directedpromptly turn over to Plaintiff all records
containing the customer information descdlie Section VII ofthis Final Order.

XI. ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporate Defendant obtain acknowledgments of
receipt of this Final Order:

A. Corporate Defendant, within 7ygdeaof entry of this Final Order, must submit
to Plaintiff an acknowledgment of receipt ofstirinal Order sworn under penalty of perjury.

B. For 20 years after entry ofghrinal Order, Cgrorate Defendant must

11



deliver a copy of this Final Order to: (1) all pripals, officers, and dictors; (2) all employees,
agents, and representatives who participatéicheshare resale activities; and (3) any business
entity resulting from any change in structa® set forth in the Section entitted Compliance
Reporting. Delivery must occur with7 days of entry of this Ral Order for current personnel.
For all others, delivery must occur befohey assume their responsibilities.

C. From each individual or entity to which Corporate Defendant delivered a copy
of this Final Order, Corporate Defendantsnobtain, within 30 dgs, a signed and dated
acknowledgment of receipt of this Final Order.

Xll.  COMPLIANCE REPORTING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporaiefendant make timely submissions to
the Commission:

A. One year after entry of this Final Order, Corporate Defendant must submit a
compliance report, sworn under penalty of perjury.

1. Corporate Defendant musfa) designate the pramy physical, postal, and
email address and telephone numbedessgnated points of contact, which
representatives of the Commission mag to communicate with Corporate
Defendant; (b) identify all of Corpate Defendant’s businesses by all of
their names, telephone numbers, and @ayspostal, email, and Internet
addresses; (c) describiee activities of each bugss, including the goods
and services offered, the means of atisieg, marketing, and sales, and the
involvement of any other Defendant; @Bscribe in detaivhether and how

Corporate Defendant is in compliancitweach Section of this Final Order;
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and (e) provide a copy of each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant
to this Final Order, unless prewsly submitted to the Commission;

B. For twenty (20) years after entry of tikigal Order, Corporate Defendant must
submit a compliance notice, swainder penalty of perjury, withih4 days of any change in
the following:

1. Corporate Defendant must report arhange in: (a) any designated point
of contact; or (b) its sticture or any entity Gporate Defendant has any
ownership interest in or controls ditl/ or indirectly that may affect
compliance obligations aimg) under this Final Ordeincluding: creation,
merger, sale, or dissolution of the entity or any subsidiary, parent, or
affiliate that engages in any acts oagtices subject to this Final Order.

C. Corporate Defendant must submit to the Commission notice of the filing of any
bankruptcy petition, insolvency proceeding, ay similar proceeding by or against such
Defendant within 14 days of its filing.

D. Any submission to the Commission remui by this Final Order to be sworn
under penalty of perjury must be true and adeuaad comply with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, such as
by concluding: “I declare under penalty ofrjpey under the laws of the United States of
America that the foregoing is true and cotreExecuted on:_ " and supplying the date,
signatory’s full name, title (if applicable), and signature.

E. Unless otherwise directed by a Commission representative in writing, all
submissions to the Commission pursuant this Final Order must be emailed to

DEbrief@ftc.gov or sent by ovegtit courier (not the U.S. PastService) to: Associate
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Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Camser Protection, Feddrarade Commission, 600
Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC 2058Me subject line nst begin: FTC v.
Resort Solution Trust, Inc., File Number X130047.

Xlll.  RECORD KEEPING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Corporate feadant must create certain records for
20 years after entry of the Fin@rder, and retain each such netfor 5 years. Specifically,
Corporate Defendant, in connection with Havertising, marketing, promotion, offering for
sale, and sale of any goods or services, enastte and retain the following records:

A. Accounting records showing the rexees from all goods or services sold;

B. Personnel records showing, for eachspe providing services, whether as an
employee or otherwise, that person’s: nanaelr@sses, and telephonenmers; job title or
position; dates of service; and, g@icable, the reason for termination;

C. Records of all consumer complairasd refund requests, whether received
directly or indirectly, such as thugh a third party, and any response;

D. All records necessary to demongréill compliance with each provision of
this Final Order, including allidbmissions to the Commission; and

E. A copy of each unique advertisement or other marketing material.

XIV. COMPLIANCE MONITORING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, fothe purpose of monitoring Corporate
Defendant’s compliance with this Final Order:
A. Within 14 days of receipt of a written request from a representative of the

Commission, Corporate Defendanmtust: submit additional compliance reports or other
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requested information, which must be sworn urmalty of perjuryappear for depositions;
and produce documents, for inspection and copyifige Commission is also authorized to
obtain discovery, without further leave of couwrsing any of the procedures prescribed by
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30 (uttng telephonic depositions), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45,
and 69.

B. For matters concerning this Final Order, the Commission is authorized to
communicate directly with Corporate Defentda Corporate Defendant must permit
representatives of Plaintiff to interview any employee or other person affiliated with any
Defendant who has agreed to such an intervi@dhe person interviewed may have counsel
present.

C. The Commission may use all other lalwvheans, including posing, through its
representatives, as consumers, suppliersptber individuals or entities, to Corporate
Defendant or any individual or entity affited with Corporate Defendant, without the
necessity of identification or prior notice. Nuwity in this Final Order limits the Commission’s
lawful use of compulsory process, pursuarBéations 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88
49, 57b-1.

XV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of this matter for

purposes of construction, modificatiomdaenforcement of this Final Order.
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DONE and ORDERED in Tampa, Florida on this 18th day of December, 2013.

Gongiir 1. Hganentry G,

VIR@INIA M. HERNANDEZA OVINGTON
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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